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MELINDA HAAG (CABN 132612) Pl i)
United States Attorney
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT

NORTHERN DISTRICT OF CALIFORNIA YG R
OAKLAND DIVISION
UNITED STATES OF AMERICA, Wak: 3 | R 2
| ) O 1 48
Plaintiff, )
' ) VIOLATIONS: 18 U.S.C. § 1343 -
\A ) Wire Fraud; 18 U.S.C. §§ 1028A(a)(1)
) and (c)(5) - Aggravated Identity Theft
SEAN LUCAS COWGILL, JUANCHO )
TANGO ANDRES, and GUADALUPE )
NIEVES, JR., )
) (OAKLAND VENUE)
Defendants. )
)
INDICTMENT
The Grand Jury charges:

At all times relevant to this Indictment:

Introductory Allegations

1. The Eamned Income Credit, Education Credit, and the Making Work Pay Credit
were refundable federal income tax credits that reduced the amount of federal tax owed, and
could result in a refund check when the credits exceeded the amount of taxes owed.

2. The electronically filed federal income tax returns identified below were
electronically transmitted from California to the Internal Revenue Service’s transmission centers
located in either Mempbhis, Tennessee or in Martinsburg, West Virginia.

"
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COUNTS ONE THROUGH THREE: (18 U.S.C. §1343 - Wire Fraud)
3 Paragraphs 1 and 2 are re-alleged and incorporated by reference as though fully

set forth herein.

4, From on or about May 27, 2011, to on or about February 24, 2012, within the
Northern District of California and elsewhere, the defendant,

SEAN LUCAS COWGILL,

having knowingly and intentionally devised and intending to devise a scheme and artifice to
defraud the United States, and to obtain money by means of materially false and fraudulent
pretenses, representations, and promises, to wit filing false tax returns claiming refund payments.

5. COWGILL created an identification information form (“ID-Doc”) which included
questions requiring personal information, such as name, income, birthday, Social Security
number, number of dependents, expenses, and type of work.

6. COWGILL trained and used recruiters to convince people to complete the ID-Doc
in order to determine if they were eligible for a stimulus program sponsored by President Obama.

7. COWGILL used ID-Docs to prepare and electronically file and cause to be filed
false federal individual income tax returns, claiming fraudulent tax credits, and claiming
fraudulent tax refunds in the names of real people.

8. COWGILL directed that the refunds be paid in a manner that enabled him to
exercise dominion and control over the fraudulently obtained refunds.

9. COWGILL paid recruiters $50 to $100 for each completed ID-Doc that resulted in

a tax refund.

The Wire Communications

10. On or about the dates listed below, for the purpose of executing the scheme
described above, COWGILL transmitted and caused to be transmitted by means of wire
communication in interstate commerce the signals described below:

/I
/
/
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Count Date Wire Communication
1 06/18/2011 Electronically filed 2010 Form 1040 in the
name of P.M. claiming a $857 tax refund
2 08/03/2011 Electronically filed 2010 Form 1040 in the
.name of L.A. claiming a $857 tax refund
3 08/09/2011 Electronically filed 2010 Form 1040 in the
name of E.B. claiming a $857 tax refund

Each in violation of Title 18, United States Code Section 1343,

COUNTS FOUR THROUGH THIRTEEN: (18 U.S.C. §1343 - Wire Fraud)

11.  Paragraphs 1 and 2 are re-alleged and incorporated by reference as though fully
set forth herein. |

12. From on or about September 17, 2011, to on or about F ebruary 24, 2012, within
the Northern District of California and elsewhere, the defendants,

SEAN LUCAS COWGILL, JUANCHO TANGO ANDRES,
and GUADALUPE NIEVES, JR.,

having knowingly and intentionally devised and intending to devise a scheme and artifice to
defraud the United States, and to obtain money by means of materially false and fraudulent
pretenses, representations, and promises, caused to be transmitted by means of wire
communication in interstate commerce, signals, and writings, to wit filing false tax returns

claiming refund payments.

The Scheme And Artifice To Defraud

13. COWGILL taught ANDRES and NIEVES to use identifying information from
real individuals who completed ID-Docs to prepare false federal income tax returns claiming tax
credits and refunds.

14, COWGILL taught ANDRES and NIEVES how to direct the refunds be paid in a
manner that enabled defendants COWGILL, ANDRES, and NIEVES to exercise dominion and
control over the fraudulently obtained refunds.

15.  ANDRES and NIEVES obtained and used recruiters to use ID-Doc to obtain the

means of identification of individuals, including names, birth dates, and Social Security numbers

INDICTMENT 3




1 |l and paid the recruiters $50 to $100 for each completed ID-Doc that resulted in a tax refund.

2 16.  ANDRES used the means of identification of actual persons to prepare and

3 | electronically file and cause to be filed false federal individual income tax returns, claiming

4 | fraudulent tax credits, and claiming fraudulent tax refunds.

5 17. ANDRES directed that the refunds be paid in a manner that enabled the

6 |f defendants to exercise dominion and control over the fraudulently obtained refunds.

7 18.  ANDRES and NIEVES paid COWGILL a $50 “franchise fee” for each tax refund
8 | that resulted from a filed fraudulent tax return.

9 The Wire Communications

10 19. On or about the dates listed below, for the purpose of executing the scheme
11 || described above, the defendants COWGILL, ANDRES, and NIEVES transmitted and caused to

12 || be transmitted by means of wire communication in interstate commerce the signals described

13 (| below:
14
Count Date Wire Communication
15 4 09/24/2011 Electronically filed 2010 Form 1040 in the
16 name of R.B. claiming a $1,857 tax refund
5 09/26/2011 Electronically filed 2010 Form 1040 in the
17 name of S.M. claiming a $1,857 tax refund
18 6 10/16/2011 Electronically filed 2010 Form 1040 in the
1o name of D.M. claiming a $1,857 tax refund
7 10/17/2011 Electronically filed 2010 Form 1040 in the
20 name of H.M. claiming a $1,400 tax refund
21 8 10/17/2011 Electronically filed 2010 Form 1040 in the
name of C.M. claiming a $1,400 tax refund
22 9 09/23/2011 Electronically filed 2010 Form 1040 in the
23 name of D.S. claiming a $1,857 tax refund
10 10/12/2011 Electronically filed 2010 Form 1040 in the
24 name of A.D.W. claiming a $1,857 tax refund
25 11 09/18/2011 Electronically filed 2010 Form 1040 in the of
‘ A.W. claiming a $1857 tax refund
26
12 09/18/2011 Electronically filed 2010 Form 1040 in the
27 name of L.W. claiming a $1,857
28 13 10/12/2011 Electronically filed 2010 Form 1040 in the
name of M.W. claiming a $1,857 tax refund

INDICTMENT 4
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Each in violation of Title 18, United States Code Section 1343.

COUNTS FOURTEEN THROUGH SIXTEEN: (18 U.S.C. §1028A(a)(1) and (c)(5) -
Aggravated Identity Theft)

19. On or about the dates identified below, within the Northern District of California,

the defendant,
SEAN LUCAS COWGILL,

during and in relation to a felony violation of Title 18, United States Code Section 1343,
knowingly transferred, possessed and used without lawful authority a means of identification
of another person during and in relation to the offenses in this Indictment identified as related
counts below, that is, he knowingly transferred, possessed and used the names and Social
Security numbers of actual persons, listed by their initials below, to commit wire fraud by

attempting to obtain the fraudulent income tax refunds identified below:

DATE OF
COUNT | OFFENSE |INDIVIDUAL RELATED COUNT
14 06/18/2011 P.M. Ct. 1
15 09/24/2011 R.B. Ct. 4
16 09/26/2011 S.M. Ct.5

Each in violation of Title 18, United States Code Sections 1028A(a)(1) and (c)(5).

COUNTS SEVENTEEN THROUGH TWENTY- THREE: (18 U.S.C. §1028A(a)(1) and (c)(5) -
Aggravated Identity Theft)

20. On or about the dates identified below, within the Northern District of California,
the defendant,
JUANCHO TANGO ANDRES,
during and in relation to a felony violation of Title 18, United States Code Section 1343,
knowingly transferred, possessed and used without lawful authority a means of identification
of another person during and in relation to the offenses in this Indictment identified as related

counts below, that is, he knowingly transferred, possessed and used the names and Social
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Security numbers of actual persons, listed by their initials below, to commit wire fraud by

attempting to obtain the fraudulent income tax refunds identified below:

DATE OF
COUNT | OFFENSE |INDIVIDUAL RELATED COUNT
17 10/16/2011 D.M. Ct. 6
18 10/17/2011 HM. Ct.7
19 10/17/2011 CM. Ct. 8
20 09/23/2011 D.S. Ct9
21 10/12/2011 AD.W. Ct. 10
22 09/18/2011 AW. Ct. 11
23 09/18/2011 L.W. Ct. 12
24 10/12/2011 M.W. Ct. 13

Each in violation of Title 18, United States Code Sections 1028A(a)(1) and (c)(5).
COUNT TWENTY-FIVE: (18 U.S.C. §1028A(a)(1) and (c)(5) - Aggravated Identity Theft)

21.

defendant,

On or about August 9, 2011, within the Northermn District of California, the

GUADALUPE NIEVES, JR.,

during and in relation to a felony violation of Title 18, United States Code Section 1343,

knowingly transferred, possessed and used without lawful authority a means of identification

of another person during and in relation to the offense described in Count 3 in this Indictment,

that is, he knowingly transferred, possessed and used the name and Social Security number of an

actual person, E.B., to commit wire fraud by attempting to obtain the fraudulent income tax

refund identified in Count 3 of this Indictment.

//
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/
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All in violation of Title 18, United States Code Sections 1028A(a)(1) and (c)(5).

DATED: 7. 27~ ¥ 13

MELINDA HAAG

United States Att rney// Ao_,/l

Chief, Criminal Division

Approved as to Form

L
THOMAS MOORE

Assistant United States Attorney .
Chief, Tax Division
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